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Imran Maqbool
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Hanya Maqbool

Mansoor Raiz

Syed Rizwan Husain

Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif

(Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director) 
 (Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Chairperson, Non-Executive Director)   

(Independent, Non-Executive Director)
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Notice is hereby given that the 47th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Crescent Fibres Limited will be held on 

Monday the 28th of October, 2024 at 9.30 a.m. at Registered Office of the Company 104-Shadman-1, Lahore to transact the 

following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30
th

 

June, 2024

 

together with 

Auditors and Directors reports thereon.

 

2. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration. The retiring auditor’s

 

M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Company, Chartered 

Accountants offer themselves for

 

re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS

  

3. To ratify

 

and approve transactions

 

conducted with related parties for the year ended June 30, 2024

 

by passing the 

following resolution in respect of related party transactions

 

in which the majority of Directors of the Company are 

interested in terms

 

of Section 207& 208

 

of the Companies Act, 2017.

 

“RESOLVED

 

THAT

 

the transactions

 

conducted with related parties as

 

disclosed in the note of the financial 

statement for the year ended June

 

30, 2024

 

and

 

specified in the Statement

 

of Material Information under section 

134(3) be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.”

 

4. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with related parties for the financial 

years ending June 30, 2025

 

by passing the following special resolution with or without modification.

 

“RESOLVED THAT

 

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to

 

approve the transactions 

to be conducted with related parties on case to case basis for the financial year ending June 30, 2025.”

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER
 

that these transactions by the Board shall be deemed
 

to have been approved by the 

shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting for their formal 

ratification/approval.” 

OTHER BUSINESS

5. To transact any other business of the Company with the permission of the Chair.

 

September 30, 2024 By Order of the Board  
 

REGISTERED OFFICE    JAVAID HUSSAIN
 104-Shadman-1, Lahore,  

                              
Company Secretary

            

 
NOTES:

1. Book Closure

The Share Transfer

 

Books will remain closed from 19th October, 2024

 

to 28th

 

October, 2024

 

(both days inclusive). 
Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s. Corplink (PVT.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1 -K, 
Commercial, Model Town Lahore at the closed business on Friday, 18 th

 

October, 2024

 

will be considered in time to 
attend the meeting.

2. Proxy Form Facility

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to 

attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxies in order to be valid must be received by the company d uly completed not 

less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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CDC shareholders are requested to bring with them their National Identity Cards alongwith participants’ ID number and 

their account numbers at the time of Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification. In case of corporate

entity, a certified copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors/valid Power of Attorney with the specimen 

signature of the nominee be produced at the time of meeting.

3. Video Conference Facility

 

The Company shall provide video conference facility to its members for attending Annual General Meeting if, members 

collectively holding 10% or more shareholding,

 

provide their consent to participate in the meeting through video 

conference at least 7 days prior to the date of AGM.

 

4. Voting through Ballot paper :

 

In accordance with regulation 8(2) of the Companies (postal Ballot) Regulation 2018. Members

 

have the option to cast 

their votes using the ballot paper copy of which is accessible

 

from printed annual reports or

 

also available on the 

Company’s website. The duly verified ballot paper should 

 

reach the Chairman of the meeting through e-mail at 

cs@crescentfibres.com

 

or through post to 104-Shadman-1, Lahore not later than

 

one day prior to the AGM, during 

working hours.

 

5. Electronic Voting:

 

In accordance Regulation 4(4) of the Companies

 

(Postal Ballot) Regulation 2018, Members also have the option to 
cast their votes thorough e-voting. Detail of E-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the
company who have valid cell numbers / e-mail addresses available in the Register of Members of the Company by the 
end of business on October 19, 2024

 

by Corplink (Private) Limited being the e voting service provider.

 

The facility for e-voting shall open on 25th

 

October, 2024

 

9.00 a.m. and shall close at 17:00 hours

 

on 27th

 

October, 2024.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SCTION 134(3) OF

 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

 

Agenda No. 3

 

of the notice-

 

Ratification and approval of the related party transactions.

  

Transactions conducted with all related parties have to be approved by the Board of Directors duly recommended by the 
Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause 15 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

 
Governance) 

Regulations, 2019. Certain related parties’
 

transactions require Shareholders approval under Section 207 & 208(to the extent 
applicable) of the Companies Act, 2017 as a majority of Directors on

 
the Company are interested in the transactions.

Relation with Company  Nature of Transaction          2024              2023  

         Rupees       Rupees           
Associated Companies / undertakings   

   Sale of Yarn / Cotton              192,738,014    185,632,232  

   
Insurance premium

                 
27,987,332

     
32,889,030

 
   

Rent received
                   

942,348
          
856,680

 Retirement benefit plans

  
Contribution to provident

 
Fund

    
20,690,903        

  
20,533,574

 Directors/Director Close relatives

 

Rent paid

        

4,380,800

       

4,380,000

 

    

Remuneration and 

 
Other benefits (Note 47) 62,662,940 57,997,300

Based on the aforesaid,

 

the Shareholders are requested to pass the Resolution with or without modification as stated in the 
Notice.

  Agenda No.4 of the notice Ratification and approval of the related party transactions

The Company shall be conducting transactions with related parties during the year ending June 30, 2025 on an arm’s length 
basis. In some of these transactions, including rent, remuneration, sales and others, the majority of Directors have an 
interest and as such these must be approved by the shareholders under Section 207 & 208(to the extent applicable) of the 
Companies.  The shareholders are being asked to authorize the Board to approve these transactions subject to them placed 
before the shareholders in the next AGM for their formal approval/ratification.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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To achieve a leadership position in providing innovative and high-quality products in all 

sectors of operations.
 

 

To be recognized as an organization that delivers on  its commitments with integrity and 

excellent value.
 

 

To foster an environment of growth, prosperity, and long term relationships, through 
dedication  to the principles of openness, honesty, and professionalism. 

 

 

To be an equal opportunity employer, and to motivate and empower every employee to 

strive for excellence in meeting the needs of our customers.

 

 

To be a responsible corporate citizen and contribute to our community by participating 
in social and environmental causes.

 

MISSION STATEMENT
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Naila Humayun Maqbool,

Chairperson, Board of Directors
September 30, 2024

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

I am pleased to present my review for the year ended June 30, 2024.  

Despite the unprecedented global pandemic, the Pakistan textile industry showed good growth and profitability over 
the last few years.  However, this trend changed in the last financial year which witnessed a significant slowdown in 
demand and falling end product prices.  Factors contributing to this include a severe slowdown in the global economy, 
rising inflation, tightening monetary policy, volatility in the commodity and exchange rate markets, and the war in 
Ukraine which is leading to supply chain disruptions and low consumer confidence.  

Our Company also faced challenges due to the worsening global and domestic scenario and had to curtail capacity 
utilization and suffer from weakening margins.  After tax loss for the year ended June 30, 2024 was Rs. 758.8 million, as 
compared to a profit of Rs. 375.3 million for the twelve months ended June 30, 2023. The earnings per share for the 
period under review was negative Rs. 61.1 as compared to Rs. 30.27 in the previous financial year.  However, a large 
portion of profit came from revaluation of investment property while operations suffered a loss.  The Director's Report 
will elaborate on our financial results, operations and future outlook. 

Economies around the world are slowing more than expected, as Russia's war in Ukraine drives inflation and the cost 
of energy higher, forcing the OECD to scale back its projections for growth in the coming years.  It forecast that 
economic growth would be a 2.1 percent this year.  Soaring inflation and interest rates, fuel by the high price of energy 
and food, is driving the slowdown and spreading to other goods and services, weighing heavily on households and 
businesses.  Such challenges come at a time when many countries lack fiscal space, with the share of low-income 
countries in or at high risk of debt distress. Higher borrowing costs, diminished credit flows, a stronger dollar and 
weaker growth will push even more into distress.  Policy makers must adopt growth supporting reforms while ensuring 
prudent monetary and fiscal policies to combat inflation.  A strong and stable global recovery is crucial for the survival of 
the local industry.

Pakistan's economy also faces several challenges including growing domestic and external indebtedness, circular 
debt, losses at state owned enterprises, high interest rates, low tax base, high deficits, and inflation.  Meaningful 
reforms are required to stabilise the exchange rate, ensure supply of energy at regionally competitive rates, boost 
competitiveness, reduce cost of doing business, address the shortfalls in cotton production and improve private sector 
liquidity through tax reforms and release of long delayed refunds.
We expect the next year to be a very difficult one for the industry.

 I would like to extend my appreciation to the Management for their handling of operations in extremely challenging 
times and would encourage them to continue to strive to protect the interest of all stake holders.

During the year, five meetings of the Board were held.  The Board of Directors is responsible for overall governance 
and administration of the company.  All Directors are aware of their duties and power. They review and approve the 
Company's financial Statements in addition to all significant plans and decisions.  The Board has formed two sub-
committees to review compliance and management of the business.  The Audit Committee focuses on compliance with 
the best practices of corporate governance and relevant statutory requirements, changes in accounting policies and 
practices, compliance with applicable accounting standards and listing regulations. Other responsibilities include 
monitoring the internal and external audit functions, review of financial statements, and recommendation appointment 
of external auditors.  During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee reviews human resource needs, compensation policies and plans, and executive 
compensation.  During the year one meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee was held.

I would like to assure you that the Board continues to function effectively and is focused on adopting the best practices 
of corporate governance to ensure future growth and profitability and to look after the interests of shareholders and all 
stakeholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board I would like to extend our gratitude to all our employees, shareholders, bankers, 
suppliers and customers.
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Overall, sales decreased by 5.1% as compared to the year ended June 2023 primarily due to reduced demand 
which forced the Management to curtail production leading to lower capacity utilization. The gross margin for the 
year was negative 3.8% as compared to 0.4 % in the previous year. Administrative expenses at 2.8% were 
higher as compared to 2.5 % in the previous period primarily attributable to reduction in capacity and increase in 
operating costs. Other Income was significantly lower at 1.3% of sales as compared to 12.4% in the previous 
period.  The Board had requested Management to continue to explore monetization options including disposal 
for the investment property.  Therefore, it had been retained as “held for sale”. The operating margin in the period 
under review was at negative 6.8% as compared to 9.2% for the year ended June 30, 2023. The financial 
charges were unchanged at 4.2% as compared to the corresponding period.  This increase is attributable to the 
unprecedented increase in interest rates and lower margins and cash flows even though overall borrowing was 
lower. Overall, the net margin for the year was negative 11.7% as compared to 5.5% for the year ended June 30, 
2023. 

DIVIDEND
The world economy has seen a sharp downturn over the last year which when combined with financial and 
commodity market volatility, rising interest rates, rising inflation and deep recession has led to large scale 
demand destruction.  Demand for products continues to be weak and we expect margins to remain under 
pressure.  In view of weakened demand, falling end product prices and uncertainty surrounding the recovery 
time, the Board of Director's has decided to forgo payment of dividend this year to maintain a conservative 
financial strategy.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholding and additional information as on June 30, 2024, have been included in the annual 
report.  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Company reported after tax loss of Rs. 758.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2024, as compared to a 
profit of Rs. 375.9 million for the twelve months ended June 30, 2023. The earnings per share for the period 
under review was negative Rs. 61.1 as compared to Rs. 30.27 in the previous financial year.  The last financial 
year has been a very difficult one for the textile industry primarily due to severe demand destruction caused by 
global recessionary trends, manifold increase in the interest rate, overall inflationary trends causing increase in 
operating costs and unprecedented increase in energy costs taking them to the highest in the region.

OPERATING RESULTS

Summarized Financial Results
Crescent Fibres Limited

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 
  

Year Ended Year Ended

 

Rupees in millions

 

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

 
  

Rs. % of Sales Rs.
% of 
Sales

 

Sales

 
 

6,499.8 100.0% 6,847.6 100.0%

 

Cost of Sales

 

(6,749.2) (103.8)% (6,818.4) (99.6)%

Gross Profit / (Loss) (249.3) (3.8)% 29.2 0.4%

Administrative Expenses (183.8) (2.8)% (171.8) (2.5)%

Distribution Cost (27.4) (0.4)% (30.8) (0.5)%

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (67.5) (1.0)% (35.2) (0.5)%

Other Income 84.6 1.3% 847.9 12.4%

Other Expenses (1.4) (0.0)% (8.3) (0.1)%

Profit from Operations/ (Loss) (444.9) (6.8)% 630.9 9.2%

Financial Charges / Other (272.6) (4.2)% (287.7) (4.2)%

Profit before Taxation & Min Tax/ (Loss) (717.5) (11.0)% 343.2 5.0%

Minimum Tax Difference (79.3) (1.2)% - 0.0%

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation & Min Tax (796.8) (12.3)% 343.2 5.0%

Taxation 38.3 0.6% 32.7 0.5%

Net Profit / (Loss) (758.4) (11.7)% 375.91 5.5%

Earnings per Share
(61.1) 30.27
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MEETINGS

Board of Directors

Five meeting of the Board were held during the financial year.  Attendance by each Director is listed in 
parenthesis:

Nadeem Maqbool, Chairman, Non-Executive Director (5)    Resigned July 1, 2024

Imran Maqbool, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director (5)

Hanya Maqbool – Non Executive Director (0) - Female -        Co-opted on July 1, 2024

Humayun Maqbool, Executive Director (5)

Naila Humayun Maqbool, Non-Executive Director (5) - Female

Mansoor Riaz, Non-Executive Director (5)

Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif - Independent, Non-Executive Director (5)

Syed Rizwan Husain - Independent, Non-Executive Director (3) 

During the year, Mr. Nadeem Maqbool resigned from the Board citing other commitments. Ms. Hanya Maqbool 
was co-opted as Director and Mrs. Naila Humayun Maqbool was nominated as Chairperson of the Board.

The Board of Directors in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) has established an Audit 
Committee with the following members (attendance by each member is listed in parenthesis):

Audit Committee

Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif, Chairman, Independent, Non-Executive (4) 

Hanya Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (0) Co-opted July 1, 2024

Naila Humayun Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (4)

Nadeem Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (4) Resigned July 1, 2024

The Board has also established a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee with the following members 
(attendance by each member is listed in parenthesis):

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Syed Rizwan Husain, Chairman, Independent, Non-Executive (1)

Naila Humayun Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (1)

Hanya Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (0) Co-opted July 1, 2024

Nadeem Maqbool, Member, Non-Executive (1) Resigned July 1, 2024

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Board Members is approved by the shareholders through an Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting for a period of three years term commencing May 1, 2022. The Company does not pay remuneration to 
Non-Executive Directors except fee for attending meetings. The Company's remuneration policies are structured 
in line with industry trends and business practices.  For information on remuneration of Management, please refer 
to the notes to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTOR'S TRAINING PROGRAM

The present BOD was elected on May 01, 2022, and out of seven directors, two directors are exempt from training 
program as mentioned in regulation no. 19, sub-regulation 2 of the Regulations. Four directors have attended the 
Directors' training course earlier and one is expected to complete the course during the current financial year.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

Our Company does not discriminate on the basis of gender. Compensation is provided according to type of 
employment contract.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The last financial year was very challenging for the textile industry caused by a weakening global economy, rising 
interest rates and inflation and overall commodity and financial market volatility which led to severe demand 
destruction and pressure on margins.  Pakistan's textile and apparel exports rose by 0.93 per cent to $16.655 
billion during fiscal 2023-24, according to data from the country's Ministry of Commerce. This marks a small gain 
from $16.501 billion in the corresponding period of the previous year.  In light of domestic and global challenges 
we expect this slow growth to continue. 

The baseline forecast is for the world economy to continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 and 2025.  A small 
acceleration is expected in advanced economies while a moderate slowdown is predicted for emerging markets, 
the forecast for global growth five years from now at 3.1 percent is at its lowest in decades. Tight global financial 
conditions and subdued external demand will continue to weigh on growth.  Policy makers will need to balance 
the need to support recovery while safeguarding price stability and fiscal sustainability and to continue efforts 
toward promoting growth-enhancing reforms. A strong and stable recovery is crucial to the textile industry viability.



Sr. No.
 

NAME
 

Purchase Inherited Gift-In Gift-Out

1
 

MR. MANSOOR RIAZ   (DIRECTOR)
 

1,500 649,904 - 227,466

2
 

MR. NADEEM MAQBOOL   (DIRECTOR)
 

- - 166,099 -

3
MRS. NAZIA MAQBOOL W/O. NADEEM 
MAQBOOL

- - - 166,099

Imprudent economic policies combined with recent global events have made Pakistan's economy particularly 
fragile, characterized by high deficits, low tax base, high external indebtedness and exorbitant energy prices. 
While inflation has shown a downward trend accompanies by a reduction in interest rates, the decrease in credit 
cost is not nearly enough to spur investment and growth.  Without meaningful reforms that boost economic 
competitiveness, direct investment toward productive sectors that promote exports and a sustained effort to end 
the regulatory quagmire, Pakistan's economic recovery will continue to falter.
Other than global and domestic economic issues, the textile industry faces other challenges including high cost 
of doing business, increased financial, exchange rate and commodity market volatility, low domestic cotton yield 
and quality and supply chain.  The Government had promised supply of energy at regionally competitive rates, 
but this has been abandoned and energy rates have been increased.  Without a regionally competitive energy 
tariff Pakistan textile exports will continue to suffer. In addition, the Government must adopt a prudent monetary 
policy, immediately suspend the sales tax regime, which is making domestic products uncompetitive versus 
imports, and improve liquidity by releasing long delayed income tax and other rebates.  
In light of the global economic scenario and Pakistan's own challenges, we expect the next year to be a difficult 
one for the textile industry.
Cognizant of the negative outlook, the Management will continue to rely on sound, low risk decision making 
to protect the interests of the shareholders.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
Under rules framed by the regulatory authorities, the Management is required to include the following 
statements relating to Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework in the Director's Report:

(a) The financial statements prepared by the Management presently fairly its state of affairs, the results of 
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(b) Proper books of account have been maintained.
(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements 

and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
(d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 

financial statements and any departure thereon has been disclosed.
(e) The system of internal control adopted by the Management is sound in design and every effort is made 

to ensure its effective implementation.
(f) There are no significant doubts with regard to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
(g) Key financial and operating data for the last six years has been included elsewhere in the annual report.
(h) There has been no significant departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in 

the listing regulations.
(i) All details regarding taxes and levies are disclosed in the financial statements and notes annexed to 

the audited accounts.
(j) The value of investments of the provident fund based on audited accounts for the Year Ended June 30, 

2024 was Rs 120,730,780.
(k) During the year, details of shares by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and 

minor children were as follows:

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

September 30,2024 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

2
4

09

AUDITORS
The present auditors, BDO Ebrahim & Co. retire, and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment. 
The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of BDO Ebrahim & Co Chartered Accountants as 
auditors for next year.
APPRECIATION
The Management wishes to place on record its appreciation for the hard work and devotion of its workers and the 
invaluable advice and support of the Company's Directors, shareholders and bankers.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
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Naila Humayun MaqboolImran Maqbool

On behalf of the Board of Director

Chief Executive officer Director

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

Name of Company : Crescent Fibres Limited

Year ended:   June 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:  

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male 6

b. Female 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:  

 

  

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company. 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 

to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant 

policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 

taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 

Regulations.

 

 

  

  

Category

Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Female Director

 

Names

Syed Rizwan Husain

Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif 

Mr. Nadeem Maqbool, 

Mrs. Naila Humayun Maqbool

Mr. Mansoor Riaz                                                                                                             

Mr. Imran Maqbool 

Mr. Humayun Maqbool

Mrs. Naila Humayun Maqbool

15.

16.

17.

18.

12.

13.

14.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 

Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board. 

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 

 

Out of seven Directors, two Directors are exempt from training program as mentioned in regulation 
no. 19, sub-regulation 2 of the Regulations. Five directors attended the Directors’ training course 

earlier. 

 

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 

with relevant requirements of the Regulations. 

  

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 

approval of the Board. 

  

                                                                                                                               

 

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is headed by a cost and management 

accountant who is suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is well conversant with the 

policies and procedures of the Company. 

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 

under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and 

registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance 

with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in 

the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief 

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of 

the Company. 

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 

services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 

the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 

have been complied with.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif Chairman 

Mr. Nadeem Maqbool 

–

– Member

Mrs Naila Humayun Maqbool –

–

–

–

Member

HR and Remuneration Committee   Syed Rizwan Husain Chairman       

Mr. Nadeem Maqbool Member

Mrs. Naila Humayun Maqbool Member   

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 

committee for compliance. 

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Four meetings 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting 
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SIX YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

OPERATING RESULTS:

Net Sales 6,499,839,404 6,847,571,401 8,098,145,390 6,091,013,443 5,023,570,129 5,289,441,070
Cost of Sales 6,749,160,113 6,818,363,352 6,886,499,102 5,246,900,680 4,624,193,242 4,878,999,857
Distribution and admin. Expenses 211,255,837 202,671,275 181,395,415 158,459,456 151,073,375 138,922,268
Financial Charges 272,596,073 287,724,827 140,149,470 116,908,698 144,539,290 124,520,265
Other operating expenses 68,888,997 43,477,436 76,244,392 59,672,113 38,495,093 22,056,497
Other operating income - Net 84,566,002 847,868,005 58,666,627 82,073,537 85,218,721 37,788,978
Share of associate profit -

                   

-

                   

(196,063)

         

(58,149)

           

(122,082) (163,269)
Pre-Tax Profit/ (Loss) (717,495,614)

    

343,202,516

     

872,327,575

    

591,087,884

    

150,365,768 162,567,892
Taxation 40,939,189

       

(32,702,731)

      

217,605,015

    

136,913,625

    

41,596,557 49,373,469
Extraordinary item
Net Income (758,434,803)

    

375,905,247

     

654,722,560

    

454,174,259

    

108,769,211 113,194,423

PER SHARE RESULTS AND RETURN:

Share Price 59.00

                

55.65

                

55.65

              

62.00

               

37.29 37.95
Earning Per Share (61.08)

               

30.27

                

52.72

              

36.57

               

8.76 9.12
Dividend Per Share -

                   

-

                   

-

                  

1.50

                  

- -
Net Income Sales Percent (11.67)% 5.49% 8.08% 7.46% 2.17% 2.14%
Return on Average Assets Percent (10.46)% 5.24% 10.63% 8.03% 2.01% 2.26%
Return on Average Equity Percent (17.50)% 8.31% 16.24% 13.00% 3.39% 3.64%

FINANCIAL POSITION:

Current Assets 2,359,364,079

  

5,741,287,027

  

3,490,642,297

 

2,307,888,352

 

2,474,673,943 2,006,090,259
Current Liabilities 2,330,810,723

  

2,344,807,011

  

2,013,171,719

 

1,299,076,293

 

2,044,358,551 1,662,218,227
Operating Fixed Assets 1,795,208,413

  

1,911,375,536

  

1,371,619,679

 

1,358,022,110

 

1,420,943,172 1,392,445,602
Total Assets 6,809,581,768

  

7,688,149,868

  

6,659,019,463

 

5,654,531,666

 

5,654,531,666 5,150,476,597
Long Term Debt 235,448,925

     

286,442,241

     

113,434,557

    

164,035,855

    

223,368,882 226,628,927
Shareholders Equity 3,958,998,808

  

4,710,336,785

  

4,339,256,233

 

3,723,848,125

 

3,262,031,430 3,150,480,471
Break-up Value Per Share 318.81

              

379.32

              

349.44

            

299.88

             

262.69 253.71

FINANCIAL RATIOS:

P/E Ratio (0.97)

                

1.84

                 

1.06

                

1.70

                 

4.26 4.16
Current Ratio 1.01 2.45 1.73 1.78 1.21 1.21
Total Debt to Total Assets Percent 41.86% 38.73% 34.84% 34.14% 42.31% 38.83%
Interest Charges Cover (Times) (1.632) 2.193 7.224 6.056 2.040 2.306
Inventory Turnover (Times) 8.448 8.278 10.753 8.183 5.886 7.244
Fixed Assets Turnover (Times) 3.621 3.583 5.904 4.485 3.535 3.799
Total Assets Turnover (Times) 0.955 0.891 1.216 1.077 0.888 1.027

OTHER DATA:

Depreciation and Amortization 141,636,936 100,477,779 104,347,308 106,769,633 112,094,218 108,046,640
Capital Expenditure 17,601,366 651,693,917 189,042,282 38,766,849 141,032,790 89,787,113

JUNE          

2019

JUNE          

2024

JUNE          

2023

JUNE          

2022

JUNE          

2021

JUNE          

2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
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2024 2023

Note Rupees RupeesASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 6 1,795,208,413 1,911,375,536

Intangible assets 7 6,249,052 8,430,500

Investment property 8 - -

Investment in associate 9 - -

Long term investments 10 69,736,881 68,226,885

Long term deposits 11 34,539,313 27,056,805

1,905,733,659 2,015,089,726CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 12 101,050,262 110,512,114

Stock-in-trade 13 698,249,075 687,933,993

Trade debts 14 1,167,185,282 1,945,149,699

Loans and advances 15 22,833,082 25,886,548

Short term deposits and prepayments 16 9,947,363 9,882,962

Other receivables 1,848,727 3,253,340

Short term investments 17 26,499,431 1,200,000

Tax refunds due from Government 18 177,433,540 105,638,469

Taxation - net 19 91,803,445 40,355,400

Cash and bank balances 20 62,513,872 204,350,417

2,359,364,079 3,134,162,942
21 2,538,897,200 2,538,897,200

TOTAL ASSETS 6,803,994,938 7,688,149,868

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital

150,000,000 150,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 22 124,178,760 124,178,760

Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,996,280,568 1,996,280,568

through other comprehensive income
Unrealized gain on investment classified as fair value 

34,198,262 32,688,266

2,030,478,830 2,028,968,834

Unappropriated profit 1,798,754,388 2,557,189,191

3,953,411,978 4,710,336,785NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 23 235,448,925 286,442,241

Lease liabilities 24 135,668,777 135,463,672

Deferred Grant 25 99,393,433 121,804,419

GIDC payable 26 - 2,843,217

Deferred taxation 27 49,261,102 86,452,523

519,772,237 633,006,072
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 28 1,647,856,424 1,597,496,291

Current portion of long term liabilities 32 122,469,025 65,876,262

Unclaimed dividend 29 3,038,460 3,038,460

Interest and mark-up accrued 30 71,209,814 50,289,757

Short-term borrowings 31 486,237,000 628,106,241

2,330,810,723 2,344,807,011

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,803,994,938 7,688,149,868

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 33

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

15,000,000 (2023: 15,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

Assets classified as held for sale

Revenue reserves

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 34 6,499,839,404 6,847,571,401

Cost of sales 35 (6,749,160,113) (6,818,363,352)

Gross (loss) /  profit (249,320,709) 29,208,049

General and administrative expenses 36 (183,849,817) (171,830,424)

Distribution cost 37 (27,406,020) (30,840,851)

Allowance for expected credit loss 14.2 (67,480,491) (35,173,753)

Other operating income 38 84,566,002 847,868,005

Other operating expenses 39 (1,408,506) (8,303,683)

(195,578,832) 601,719,294

Operating (loss) / profit (444,899,541) 630,927,343

Financial charges 40 (272,596,073) (287,724,827)

(Loss) / profit before taxation and minimum tax differential (717,495,614) 343,202,516

Minimum tax differential 41 (79,286,707) -

(Loss) / profit before taxation (796,782,321) 343,202,516

Taxation 42 38,347,518 32,702,731

(Loss) / profit for the year (758,434,803) 375,905,247

(Loss) / Earnings per share - basic and diluted 43 (61.08) 30.27

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

(Loss)/ profit  for the year (758,434,803) 375,905,247

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income

1,509,996 (4,824,695)

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (756,924,807) 371,080,552

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Unrealized gain/ (loss) on revaluation of investments classified as fair 

value through other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

subsequently

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 45 349,983,161 563,069,514

Finance cost paid (232,668,776) (255,689,693)

Taxes paid (50,291,948) (124,383,911)

Net cash generated from operating activities 67,022,437 182,995,910

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (17,601,366) (651,693,917)

Long term deposits (7,482,508) 4,344,794

Short term investments - net (25,299,431) -

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets - 15,377,798

Net cash used in investing activities (50,383,305) (631,971,325)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term financing 46 - 352,599,000

Repayments of long term financing 46 (35,205,110) (82,679,723)

Dividend paid - (1,916)

Proceeds from Lease Financing 46 43,100,000 125,000,000

Payments of lease liabilities 46 (24,501,324) (21,936,030)

Short term borrowings - net (141,869,243) 32,534,746

Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (158,475,677) 405,516,077

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (141,836,545) (43,459,338)

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 204,350,417 247,809,755

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 62,513,872 204,350,417

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Revenue reserves

Balance as at July 01, 2022 124,178,760 37,512,961 1,996,280,568 2,181,283,944 4,339,256,233

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit for the year -

 

-

                         

- 375,905,247 375,905,247

Other comprehensive loss -

 

(4,824,695)

             

- - (4,824,695)

(4,824,695)

             

375,905,247 371,080,552

Balance as at June 30, 2023 124,178,760 32,688,266 1,996,280,568 2,557,189,191 4,710,336,785

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Loss for the year - - - (758,434,803) (758,434,803)

Other comprehensive income - 1,509,996 - 1,509,996

- 1,509,996 - (758,434,803) (756,924,807)

Balance as at June 30, 2024 124,178,760 34,198,262 1,996,280,568 1,798,754,388 3,953,411,978

Total

----------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

Unappropriated

profit

Unrealized gain 

on investment 

classified as fair 

value through 

OCI

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Capital reserve

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



               

               
                

                  

                      
                      

        

                       
                       

                       

         

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

Geographical locations and addresses of all  the business units are as under: 

Locations

Karachi

Office no. 7th Floor, Lakson Square Building No.3 Karachi, Pakistan.

Nooriabad

Bhikhi

17-KM, Faisalabad Road, Bhikhi, District Sheikhupura in the Province of Punjab

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

Crescent Fibers Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on August 06, 1977

under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a public limited company.

The Company's shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the

Company is situated at 104 Shadman 1, Lahore. The principal business of the Company is to 
manufacture and sale of yarn. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of :

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS,

the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,  2017 have been followed.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Plot No. B/123, Road No. D-7, Industrial Area Nooriabad, District Dadu, in the Province of

Sindh

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee ('Rupee', or 'Rs') which is the

functional and presentation currency for the Company and rounded off to the nearest rupee.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for

revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment at fair value.



January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

Effective date 

(annual periods

beginning on or 

after)
Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS

Practice 

Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accounting 

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from a single transaction

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the

requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar

two income taxes

3.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

a)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

4

4.1

amortisation method, useful lives and residual values of  intangibles (notes 5.5 and 7);

allowance for expected credit losses (notes 5.1 and 14.2);

taxation (notes 5.11 and 41);

contingencies (notes 5.14 and 42)

determination and measurement of deferred capital grant (notes 5.18 and 25)

fair value of investment property (note 5.2.2 & 8)

The following stantdards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June

30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the

Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than

certain additional disclosures.

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

b)

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and

assumptions are significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment  

(notes 5.2 and 6 );

depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of right-of-use asset and determination 

and measurement of lease liabilities (notes 5.2, 6 and 24);

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for

the year ended June 30, 2024

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and

assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also

requires the management to exercise judgement in application of accounting policies. The

estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision

affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both

current and future years.

provision of slow moving and obsolete stores, spares and loose tools  (notes 5.7, and 12.1);
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4.2

The amendments require the disclosure of ' ’material rather than ' ’significant accounting

policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure

of accounting policies, assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting policy

information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in Note:

5 Material accounting policy information (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain

instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accounting policies are material

for disclosure. 

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting

periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,

amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not

expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain

additional  disclosures.

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard

(lAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any

changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information

disclosed in the financial statements. 
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January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current

liabilities with covenants

Effective date 

(annual periods

beginning on or 

after)

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance

arrangements

Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier

finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding

the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-

lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -

Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial

instruments
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5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

5.1 Financial instruments

5.1.1 Financial assets

5.1.1.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

-

-

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at

 FVTPL

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) equity investment, or fair value through profit or

loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the

business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow

characteristics.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment?s fair value in OCI. This

election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set

out below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as at FVTPL:

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above

are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a

financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at

FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction

costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in

statement of profit or loss.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by 

IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities 

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB

effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB

effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the

adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.



5.1.1.3 Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets

have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership.

The expected loss rates are based on the Company?s historical credit losses experienced over the

three year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current

and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Company?s customers. 

The Company has identified the gross domestic product (GDP), unemployment rate and

inflation rate as the key macroeconomic factors.
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Financial assets at

amortised cost

Equity investments at

FVOCI

5.1.1.2 Impairment of financial assets

-

-

The Company's trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component (as

determined in terms of the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with

Customers"), therefore, the Company is using simplified approach, that does not require the

Company to track the changes in credit risk, but, instead, requires to recognise a loss allowance

based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses using a

lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses

on a collective basis, trade receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and aging.

12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as

there is no significant deterioration in credit quality.

Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has

occurred on an individual or collective basis.

The Company's financial assets include mainly trade debts, deposits, short term investments,

advances, other receivables, cash and bank balances.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model

which requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected

credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In

other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognized. 

The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pattern of

deterioration or improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs

recognised as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration since

initial recognition. Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

recognised as income in statement of profit or loss unless the dividend

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other 

net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to

statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

losses (see (ii) below). Interest income, foreign exchange gains and

losses and impairment are recognised in  statement of profit or loss.



5.1.1.4 Financial liabilities 

5.1.1.5 Derecognition of financial liabilities

5.1.1.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.2 Property, plant and equipment

5.2.1 Owned

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company?s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is

recognized in profit or loss.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange

and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in statement of

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially

measured at fair value less transaction costs. 

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement

of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized

amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and

discharge the liability simultaneously. Corresponding income on assets and charge on liability is

also offset.
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Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method at

the rates specified in the respective note and after taking into account residual value. Leasehold

land is amortized over the term of lease.

Depreciation on additions during the year is charged on pro-rata basis when the assets are

available for use. Similarly the depreciation on disposal is charged on pro-rata basis up to the

period when the asset is derecognized.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at each

statement of financial position date. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of

profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains

and losses if any, on disposal of property, plant and equipment are included in statement of

profit or loss.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the surplus on

revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the

carrying amounts of assets do not differ materially from the fair value of such assets.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except

freehold land which is stated at revalued amount.



5.2.3 Leases

Right of use assets

The lease liability was measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future lease

payments over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method.

The right of use assets is subsequently depreciated using the reducing balance method from the

date of recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the

lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same basis

as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right of use assets is periodically

reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease

liability.

Lease Liability

The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease

liability adjusted for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct

cost incurred less any lease incentives received.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value at

each reporting date and any subsequent changes in fair value is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss (i.e. in cases where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an

investment property, the fair value gain to be recognised in the profit and loss would be the

difference between the fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property and

fair value at the time of subsequent remeasurement). The revaluations of investment properties

are carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active market

price.

5.2.2 Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation or both are classified as investment property. These are not held for use in the

production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Company's

business model i.e. the Company?s intentions regarding the use of a property is the primary

criterion for classification as an investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However,

when an owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because

its use has changed, the transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer

and any balance of surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer

continues to be maintained in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment's. Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the revaluation surplus account

is directly transferred to retained earnings/accumulated losses and the transfer is not made

through the statement of profit or loss. However, any gain or loss on disposal of investment

property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying

amount of the item) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use,

evidenced by the end of owner occupation. In case of a dual purpose properties, the same is

classified as investment property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately.
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Short term leases

5.2.4 Capital work in progress

5.3 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is

recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as

“Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, in

which case the increase is credited to statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease

previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of property,

plant and equipment is charged to statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the

balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment relating to a

previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a

capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to the shareholders.

Short term leases including Ijarah financing where a significant portion of the risks and rewards

of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under

operating leases are charged to statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease

/Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the

Company?s benefit.

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost and consists of expenditure incurred, advances made

and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course of their construction

and installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant

operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use intended by the

management.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit

exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group

that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment

losses are recognized as expense in statement of profit or loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets recoverable

amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the

carrying amount of the right-of-use assets, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount

of the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zero.

Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method. It is measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in

the rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable

under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will

exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
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5.9 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount being the fair value of

the consideration to be received in future. An allowance for ECL is made against trade debts on

the basis of lifetime expected credit loss model as explained in note 5.1 whereas debts

considered irrecoverable are written off.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Estimates of net

realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are

made of the amount the inventories are expected to realize.

Cost of work in process and finished goods comprises of cost of direct material, labour and

appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads.
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5.5 Intangible assets

5.6 Investment in equity accounted associate

5.7 Stores, spares and loose tools

5.8 Stock in trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

- Raw material                                      At weighted average cost

- Work in progress                               Average manufacturing cost

- Finished goods                                   Average manufacturing cost

- Waste                                                 Net realizable value

Stores and spares are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Cost is

determined using moving average method. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil value.

Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

Goods in transit are stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon up to the date of

statement of financial position.

These investments are initially recognized at cost and thereafter, the carrying amount is

increased or decreased to recognize the Company's share of profit or loss of associates. Share of

post acquisition profit or loss of associates is accounted for in the Company's statement of profit

or loss. Distribution received from investee reduces the carrying amount of investment.

Intangible assets are amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use. Amortisation

charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is written off

over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Generally, costs

associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as

incurred. However, costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have

probable economic benefit exceeding one year are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs

include the purchase cost of software and related overhead cost.

The changes in the associate's equity which have not been recognized in the associates'

statement of profit or loss, are recognised directly in the equity of the Company.

Entities in which the Company has significant influence but not control and which are neither its

subsidiaries nor joint ventures are associates and are accounted for by using the equity method

of accounting.
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5.11.3

5.12 Trade and other payables

5.13 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting

future cash flows at appropriate discount rate where ever required. Provisions are reviewed at
each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to

the Company.

Levy

The amount calculated on taxable profit using the notified tax rate is recognized as current

income tax expense for the year in Statement of Profit or Loss. Any excess of expected income

tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance over the amount designated as current

income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

5.10 Cash and cash equivalents

5.11 Taxation

5.11.1 Current

5.11.2 Deferred

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the

purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash in transit

and balances with banks.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax

rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,

based on the rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the date of

statement of financial position.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax

assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax

losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which deferred tax asset can be utilized, except where the deferred tax asset relating to

the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability that,

at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted

or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years and tax credit, if any.

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial statement method in respect of

temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in financial statements purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.



- Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

-

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive is established.

Mark-up on bank deposits is accrued on time proportion using effective interest method.

5.16 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

Others

- Scrap sales are recognized on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme covering all its permanent

employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees in

accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue

from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods passes to customers and the

customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods.

Revenue is recognized when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company?s activities

as described below.

Sale of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the

customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer?s acceptance of

the products. 

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring

goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before

the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made.

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance

obligations under the contract.

5.14 Contingencies

5.15 Borrowings cost

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past

events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has

a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Borrowings are initially recorded at the proceeds received. In subsequent periods, borrowings

are stated at amortized cost using the effective yield method. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to

the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost

of that asset.
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-

-

5.18 Deferred Capital Grant

5.19 Foreign currency translation

5.20 Related party transactions

5.21 Share capital

5.22 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the year in

which it is approved by the shareholders.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at the exchange rates

prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in

foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the

statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange differences are recognized in the

statement of profit or loss.

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Transactions with related parties are based at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the

same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the statement

of profit or loss on the date at which the transaction takes place.

Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss' and 'fair value through other comprehensive income

are included in the statement of profit and loss and statement of other comprehensive income

respectively in the year in which they arise.

The Company recognises bene? t of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a

government grant provided there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

Company will comply with all attached conditions. The bene?t of loan at below market rate of

interest is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan in

accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The bene?t is generally accounted for and

presented as deferred grant as a separate line item in statement of ?nancial position.

Subsequently, the grant is recognized in the statement of pro?t or loss as other income, on a

systematic basis over the periods in which the related ?nance cost for which the grant is

intended to compensate is incurred.

5.23 Earnings per share

5.24

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic Earning per

share is calculated by dividing the statement of profit or loss attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the period.

Change in Accounting Policy

Previously, sum of current tax expense calculated as per applicable tax laws, prior year tax

expense and deferred tax was recorded as income tax expense.

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan has issued the guidance for

accounting of minimum and final taxes through circular No. 7/2024 dated May 15, 2024 and

defined following two approaches:
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

6

6.1 1,790,325,959 1,191,009,114

6.2 4,882,454 720,366,422

1,795,208,413 1,911,375,536

Operating fixed assets

Capital work-in-progress

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Approach 1: Designate the amount calculated as tax on gross amount of revenue or other basis

as a levy within the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 and recognize it as an operating expense. Any

excess over the amount designated as a levy is then recognized as current income tax expense

falling under the scope of IAS 12.

Approach 2: Designate the amount of tax calculated on taxable income using the notified tax

rate as an income tax within the scope of IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and recognize it as current

income tax expense. Any excess over the amount designated as income tax, is then recognized

as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Company has revised its accounting policy and

adopted approach 2. This change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively as

referred under International Accounting Standard - 8 'Accounting policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors', However, adopted changes has no impact on previously

reported numbers as the tax expense was based on taxable profit of the company.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

6.1.1

Cost of sales 35 128,733,803

      

86,732,451

         

General and administrative expenses 36 12,903,133

        

13,745,328

         

141,636,936

      

100,477,779

       

6.1.2

6.1.3 Particulars Location Total area

Free hold Land 57 acres

Free hold Land New Lahore Road, Nishatabad, Faisalabad. 5.8 acres

Lease hold Land 14 acres

6.1.4

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 47,164,656

        
47,164,656

         
6.1.4.1

6.2 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of freehold land would have been as follows:

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Last revaluation was carried out on July 06, 2021 by M/s. Evaluation Focused Consulting, an

independent valuer, resulting in revaluation surplus aggregating to Rs. 2.454 million. During

the current year management has carried the revaluation exercise, however, management

believes that the value does not materially differ from the carrying amounts.

Fair value of freehold land is considered to be based on level 2 in the fair value hierarchy due

to significant observable input used in the valuation.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values

Fair value of freehold land was derived using sale comparison approach, standard appraisal

procedures and physical site inspection. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity is

adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the land. Moreover, value

of land also depends upon the area and location. The most significant input in this valuation

approach is price / rate per kanal / acre in particular locality. This valuation is considered to be

level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation.

B-123, Road no. D-7, Nooriabad SITE, District 

Jamshoro

Mouza Bhikhi, Lahore Sheikhupura Road, Tehsil 

& District Sheikhupura

Extention in blow room 6.2.1 4,882,454 720,366,422

6.2.1 The movement of capital work-in-progress (cost) is as under:

Transferred

 to operating

fixed assets

720,366,422

         

9,498,766

             

724,982,734

         

4,882,454

             

Total - 2023 103,987,733

         

616,378,689

         

-

                       

720,366,422

         

Extension in  blowroom building-

Unit 2

during
As at June 30, 

2024
the year

Rupees

Description

Cost

As at July 01, 

2023

Additions
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 7.1.1 6,249,052
          

8,430,500
           

7.1 Movement in intangible assets

Opening net book value 8,430,500          8,778,168           

Additions (at cost) -                     1,667,074           

Amortisation charged 36 (2,181,448)         (2,014,742)          
Closing net book value 6,249,052          8,430,500           
Useful life in years 5 5

7.1.1

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY - AT FAIR VALUE

Opening balance -

                     

1,756,577,720

    
Transferred from Assets held for sale -

                     

-

                     
Fair value adjustment -

                     

782,319,480

       
-

                     

2,538,897,200

    
Assets classified as held for sale 21 -

                     

(2,538,897,200)

   -

                     

-

                     8.1

This includes computer software named as SAP business one.

The carrying value of investment property is the fair value of the property as determined by

independent valuer (approved by Pakistan Banks' Association and Leasing Association of

Pakistan) M/s. Evaluation Focused Consulting as on June 30, 2023 on the basis of market

value. Fair value was determined having regard to recent market transactions for similar

properties in the same location and condition as the Company's investment property. Fair value

measurement of revalued premises is based on assumptions considered to be level 2 inputs.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

2
4

42
has

8.2 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Investment property

8.3 Forced sales value - Investment property

8.4 Location and area - Investment property

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

9.1 -                     -                     Investment in associate

Forced sales value of investment property as of June 30, 2023 amounted to Rs. 2,158.062

million. 

 Investment property of 368.9 kanal is located at New Lahore Road, Nishatabad, Faisalabad.

Fair value of investment was derived using sale comparison approach, standard appraisal

procedures and physical site inspection. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity is

adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the land. Moreover, value

of land also depends upon the area and location. The most significant input in this valuation

approach is price / rate per kanal / acre in particular locality. This valuation is considered to be

level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation.



9.1 Investment in associate

Premier Insurance Limited

69,621 shares of Rs. 10 each (2023 : 69,621
shares of Rs.10/- each)

Cost of investment 930

                    

930

                     
88,077

               

88,077

                
Accumulated impairment (89,007)

              

(89,007)

               
Share of loss for the year -

                     

-

                     

(930)

                   

(930)

                   

-

                     

-

                     
Market value of investment in associate was Rs. 0.411 million (2023: Rs. 0.348 million).

Accumulated share of post acquisition profit - 

net of dividend received

Financial statements of associated company for the year ended June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

have been used for the purpose of application of equity method. The percentage of equity held

in associate is 0.1377% (2023: 0.1377%).

Summarised financial information of Premier Insurance Limited as of June 30, 2024 (Un-

audited) is set out below:

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Total assets 2,485,575,000

   

2,311,404,000

    

Total liabilities 1,478,701,000

   

1,564,739,000

    

Net assets 1,006,874,000

   

746,665,000

       

Underwriting results (35,244,000)

       

(157,572,000)

      

Investment income 23,894,000

        

29,356,000

         

Loss after tax (5,100,000)

         

(45,406,000)

        

Company's share of associate's net assets 1,386,325

          

1,028,053

           

10

At fair value through other comprehensive 

income 10.1          69,736,881           68,226,885 

10.1 Fair value through other comprehensive income

At cost          48,187,534           48,187,534 

Unrealized gain

As at July 01,          32,688,266           37,512,961 

Gain/ (loss)  for the year - net            1,509,996           (4,824,695)

As at June 30,          34,198,262           32,688,266 

Impairment loss        (12,648,915)         (12,648,915)

10.1.1          69,736,881           68,226,885 

Equity investment

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS



2023 2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

1,487,926
        

          19,878,691           19,194,245 

1,089
               

1,089
               

               100,297                  36,874 

285,357
           

285,357
           

            3,766,712                739,075 

1,011,751
        

          40,227,220           44,334,929 

50,060
             

50,060
             

               170,204                170,204 

479,739

           

479,739

           

            5,593,757             3,751,559 

25,000

             

25,000

             

                         -                            -   

533,623

           

533,623

           

                         -                            -   

          69,736,881           68,226,885 

Unquoted - At breakup value

Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited

Crescent Bahuman Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Number of shares Market value

2024

Quoted - At fair value

1,487,926
              

The Crescent Textile Mills Limited

Crescent Cotton Mills Limited

Jubilee Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited

1,011,751
              

Shakarganj Mills Limited

Crescent Jute Products Limited
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

27,418,000        22,778,000

690,343 690,343

11.1 6,430,970 3,588,462

34,539,313 27,056,805

        

112,679,499

      

121,756,412

12.1 (11,629,237)

       

(11,244,298)

101,050,262

      

110,512,114

11,244,298

        

10,829,860

384,939 414,438

11,629,237 11,244,298

489,070,787 458,254,047

85,381,195 129,395,154

123,797,093 100,284,792

698,249,075 687,933,993

14.1 3,232,249 27,891,583

1,163,953,033 1,917,258,116

1,167,185,282 1,945,149,699

166,069,150 98,588,659

1,333,254,432 2,043,738,358

14.2 (166,069,150) (98,588,659)

1,167,185,282 1,945,149,699

11 Long term deposits

Security deposits

Leases

Electricity deposit
             Others           

11.1

12 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

In hand

12.1 Provision for slow moving items

Balance at the beginning of the year

Provision recognized during the year

Balance at the end of the year

13 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material in hand

Work-in-process

Finished goods

14 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED

Considered good

Due from related parties

Others

Considered doubtful 

Stores, spares and loose tools

Less: Provision for slow moving items

Security deposits have not been discounted to their present value as the financial impact thereof, is not considered 

material. 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

14.1 This represents due from Suraj Cotton Mills Limited, an associated company.

10.1.1 Details of fair value through other comprehensive income investment are as under:
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

14.2 Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance          98,588,659           63,414,906 

Written-off during the year                        -                            -   

Allowance recognized during the year          67,480,491           35,173,753 

Closing balance        166,069,150           98,588,659 

14.3

Not past due 3,143,520          10,705,550         

1 to 30 days 88,729               17,186,033         

3,232,249          27,891,583         

14.4

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES - UNSECURED

Loans

To employees                                           15.1 1,616,620

          

1,661,623

           Advances

To suppliers / contractors 15.2 21,216,462

        

16,287,485

         
Against imports 15.3 -

                     

7,937,440

           
21,216,462

        

24,224,925

         

22,833,082

        

25,886,548

         15.1

15.2

15.3

This represents advances to suppliers / contractors in the normal course of business and does

not carry any interest or mark-up.

This represents advances against imports for stores and spares in the normal course of business

and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

The maximum amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

35.272 million (2023: Rs. 56.484 million).

The aging of related party balances as at the reporting date is as follows:

These loans are granted to employees of the Company which do not carry mark-up in

accordance with their terms of employment.

16 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits 16.1 9,947,363
          

9,858,080
           

Prepayments -                     24,882                

9,947,363          9,882,962           

16.1 This includes short term bank guarantee and Letter of Credit (LC) margin in the normal course

of business and does not carry any interest or mark-up.



2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

17

17.1         26,499,431             1,200,000 

17.1

18 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable 138,671,602

      

105,638,469

       

Income tax refundable 38,761,938

        

-

                     

      177,433,540         105,638,469 

19 TAXATION - NET

Advance income tax 91,803,445
        

127,133,472
       

Provision for taxation 42 -
                     

(86,778,072)
        

91,803,445
        

40,355,400
         

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 205,291             1,196,401           
Bank balances

With conventional banks

- current accounts 12,597,118
        

89,857,320
         

- saving accounts 20.1 48,762,784
        

112,913,759
               61,359,902         202,771,079 

With Islamic banks

- current accounts 948,679

             

               382,937 

62,513,872

        

204,350,417

       
20.1

21 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

   2,538,897,200      2,538,897,200 

21.1

The balance in saving accounts carry profit at average rates of 20.50% per annum (2023:

12.50% to 14.50% per annum).

Asset held for Sale

TDR-at amortised cost 

These term deposit certificates carry mark-up at rates ranging from 16.87 % to 18.85% per

annum (2023: 9% to 19.50% per annum). 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

The Board of Directors earlier, in their meeting decided to sale the investment property located at

Nishatabad, Faisalabad. Accordingly, the stated assets were re-classified as assets held for sale.

However, due to depressed economic conditions, the availability of prospective buyers offering

desired prices remain restricted and factory assets cannot be sold during the year despite the

efforts of the management of the Company. Therefore, the Board of Directors in their meeting,

dated February 9, 2024, re-validate its decision to sale the property and approved the same by

passing special resolution in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated March 09,2024.
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22.1

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

23 LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Conventional mode

MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 1 23.1 13,261,000
        

17,683,000
         

MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 2 23.2 -
                     

3,336,000
           MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 3 23.3 -

                     
4,390,222
           MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 4 23.4 10,662,000

        
21,330,000

         MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 5 23.5 10,500,000

        

16,500,000

         MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 6 23.6 22,361,112

        

28,750,000

         MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 7 23.7 18,442,000

        

18,442,000

         
MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 8 23.8 75,768,000

        

75,768,000

         
MCB Bank Limited - Term finance - 8 23.8 26,831,000

        

26,831,000

         
United Bank Limited - Term finance - 9 23.9 131,717,923

      

112,710,683

       
309,543,035

      

325,740,905

       
(74,094,110)

      

(39,298,664)

        

235,448,925

      

286,442,241

       
23.1

Less: Current portion shown under current

         liabilities

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 3.25% as per State Bank

of Pakistan LTFF scheme and is payable semi-annually over a period of 10 years after a grace

period of 18 months with installments starting from November 2018 and last installment is

payable in November 2026. The finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu

equitable mortgage / hypothecation charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs.

460 million. The limit of the facility is Rs. 41 million (2023: Rs. 41 million).

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The

holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the

Company's residual assets.

22 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

                 

                     

2024 2023

9,128,510 Fully paid in cash 91,285,100

        

91,285,100

        

535,533

5,355,330

          

5,355,330

          

2,753,833 2,753,833 27,538,330

        

27,538,330

        

12,417,876 12,417,876 124,178,760

 

124,178,760

      

381,657 381,657 Shares held by associated undertakings 3,816,570

 

3,816,570

          

9,128,510

535,533 Fully paid issued to financial institution

against conversion of loan

Fully paid bonus shares

2024 2023

Number of ordinary shares of 

Rs. 10/- each



23.7 This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 6 months KIBOR + 1.25%

and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years after a grace period of 18 months with

installments starting from May 2025 and last installment is payable in November 2030. The

finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage / hypothecation

charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460 million. The limit of the facility

is Rs. 190 million (2023: 190 million).
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23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

23.6

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 1 located at Nooriabad. The rate of mark-up is 6 months KIBOR +

1.25% and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years inclusive of 18 months grace period

with installments starting from November 2021 and last installment is payable in May 2025. The

finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage / hypothecation

charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460 million. The sanctioned limit of

the facility is Rs. 48 million (2023: Rs. 48 million).

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 6 months KIBOR + 1.25%

and is payable quarterly over a period of 6 years inclusive of 18 months grace period starting

from January 2019 and last installment is payable in March 2026. The finance facility is secured

against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage / hypothecation charge over fixed assets of

the Company aggregating to Rs. 460 million. The sanctioned limit of the facility is Rs. 27 million

(2023: Rs. 27 million).

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 3.25% as per State Bank

of Pakistan LTFF scheme and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years after a grace

period of 18 months with installments starting from October 2018 and last installment was paid

in November 2023. The finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable

mortgage / hypothecation charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460

million. The limit of the facility is Rs. 32 million (2023: Rs. 32 million).

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 6 months KIBOR + 1.25%

and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years after a grace period of 18 months with

installments starting from November 2021 and last installment is payable in December 2027. The

finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage / hypothecation

charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460 million. The limit of the facility

is Rs. 190 million (2023: 190 million).

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for balancing modernization and

replacement in Textile Unit 2 located at Bikhi. The rate of mark-up is 3.25% as per State Bank

of Pakistan LTFF scheme and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years after a grace

period of 18 months with installments starting from August 2017 and last installment was paid in

June 2024. The finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage /

hypothecation charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460 million. The limit

of the facility is Rs. 20 million (2023: Rs. 20 million).



29,486,271 11,092,700

135,668,777 135,463,672
165,155,048

      

146,556,372

       

24.1 This includes finance leases entered into with financial institutions for vehicles. Financing rates

ranging from 26.61% to 28.27% (2023: 14.43% to 23.26%) per annum have been used as a

discounting factor. At the end of the lease period the ownership of assets shall be transferred to

the Company on payment of residual values of the assets. These facilities are secured by security

deposit and personal guarantees of directors and hypothecation charge on leased assets.  

Maturity analysis-contractual cash flows

Upto one year

One to five years
Total lease liability

23.8

23.9

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

24

Lease liability at  July 01, 146,556,372

      

43,492,402

         

Additions during the year 43,100,000

       

       

 

 

125,000,000

      

      

 

 

189,656,372

      

168,492,402

       

Lease payments (24,501,324)

      

(21,936,030)

        

Lease liability at June 30, 165,155,048

      

146,556,372

       
Current portion 32 (29,486,271)

      

(11,092,700)

        

135,668,777

      

135,463,672

       

LEASE LIABILITIES - SECURED

This facility was obtained from United Bank Limited under the Temporary Economic Refinance

(TERF) schemes of State Bank of Pakistan for the import of machinery for planned BMR

activity in existing units located at Bikhi-Punjab. The rate of mark-up is SBP Rate (1%) + 3.50%

and is payable semi-annually over a period of 10 years after a grace period of 2 years with

installments starting from November 2024 and last installment is payable in January 2033. The

finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable mortgage / hypothecation

charge over present and future fixed assets at Nooriabad unit and pari passi equitable mortgage

on land and building of the Company located in Faisalabad and Lahore aggregating to Rs. 400

million with 25% margin and exclusive charge on plant and machinery of Rs. 134 million. The

sanctioned limit of the facility is Rs. 250 million (2023: 250). The loan had been recognised at

present value using effective rate of 21.07% per annum. The difference of present value of the

loan and actual disbursement has been recorded as government grant, as disclosed in note 25, as

per the circular No. 11/2020 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

This facility was obtained from MCB Bank Limited for the import of machinery for planned

BMR activity in existing units located at Bikhi-Punjab and Dadu-Sindh. The rate of mark-up is 6

months KIBOR + 1.25% and is payable semi-annually over a period of 6 years after a grace

period of 18 months with installments starting from May 2025 and last installment is payable in

November 2030. The finance facility is secured against first registered pari passu equitable

mortgage / hypothecation charge over fixed assets of the Company aggregating to Rs. 460

million and exclusive charge on plant and machinery of Rs. 271.43 million. The sanctioned limit

of the facility is Rs. 190 million (2023: 190 million).
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25.2 

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
26 GIDC PAYABLE

GIDC Payable 229,778,482      220,397,766       
Less: Current portion (229,778,482)    (217,554,549)      

26.1 -
                     

2,843,217
           

26.1 This includes the amount payable in respect of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)

levied under GIDC Act, 2015. Financing rate 9.19% (2023: 9.19%) per annum have been used

as a discounting factor.

The management is hopeful that the interpretation of the Company will sustain and eventually the

Company will not require to make differential payment.

This represents government grant recognized on long term financing facilities obtained under

Temporary Economic Refinance (TERF) schemes of State Bank of Pakistan as disclosed in note

23 to the financial statements. The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued

the guidance for accounting of said financing through circular No. 11/2020. Accordingly, the

Company recognised the Deferred Government Grant in accordance with the requirements of

'IAS 20-Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'.

In November 2020, the Supreme Court dismissed the review petition seeking review of its order

issued in favor of recovery for GIDC arrears. Accordingly, the Company has paid GIDC

installments amounting to Nil million (2023: Rs. 1.975 million) as per monthly billing by Sui

Northern Gas Pipeline Limited (SNGPL), however, the matter with respect to GIDC billing by

Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) is under litigation in High Court of Sindh. The liability in

respect of Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) amounting to Rs. 229.778 million (2023: Rs.

220.398 million) is recognized as per the guidelines issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants

of Pakistan dated January 21, 2021.

24.2 

24.3 Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

Interest expense on lease liability 40 33,724,894
        

9,149,978
           

Expense relating to short-term leases 36 4,380,000
          

4,380,000
           

38,104,894

        

13,529,978

         25 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

25.1 & 

25.2

      118,282,077         137,289,317 

       (18,888,644)         (15,484,898)

        99,393,433         121,804,419 

25.1 

      137,289,317             1,034,420 

        140,084,247 

       (19,007,240)           (3,829,350)

      118,282,077         137,289,317 

Total amount recognised in statement of 

profit or loss

Opening balance

Following is the movement in government grant during the year:

Closing balance

Addition during the year

Amortized during the year

Deferred government grant

Less: Current portion of government grant

Temporary economic refinance facility

This also includes leases entered into with the financial institution for imported machinery.

Financing ranging from 24.81% to 25.68% (2023: 16.19% to 25.68% ) per annum have been

used as a discounting factor. At the end of the lease period the ownership of the machine shall be

transferred to the Company on payment of residual value. This facility is secured by security

deposit and personal guarantees of directors.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

The gross movement in the deferred

tax liability during the year is as follows:

Balance as at July 1, 86,452,524        123,368,294       
Charged during the year - net (37,191,422)      (36,915,770)        

49,261,102
        

86,452,524
         

27.2

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 28.1 516,343,787

      

760,770,164

       

Accrued liabilities 590,562,181

      

513,721,392

       

Contractual liability 28.2 73,090,735

        

16,536,429

         

Payable to provident fund 8,876,236

          

4,145,816

           

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 28.3 -

                     

-

                     

Due to related party 28.4 86,997,889

        

23,696,548

         

Withholding tax payable 6,272,577

          

3,655,554

           

Workers' Welfare Fund 46,079,959

        

46,079,959

         

Provision for default surcharge 1,137,423

          

-

                         

GIDC payable 26 229,778,482

      

217,554,549

       

Minimum tax - levy 79,286,707

        

-

                         

Other liabilities 9,430,448

          

11,335,880

         

1,647,856,424

   

1,597,496,291

    

28.1

28.2

28.3

Balance as at July 01, - 47,119,445

Add: Allocation for the year - -

Add: Interest on funds utilized in the

Add: Company's business - 4,241,258

- 51,360,703

Less: Amount paid during the year - (51,360,703)

- -

The Company has accounted for deferred tax asset on unused tax losses based on its future

projections and in accordance with accounting policy as stated in note 5.11.2 to these financial

statements.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for

future sales as per the Company's policy, for which revenue is recognised at a point in time.

Revenue recognized from contract liabilities during the year amounted to Rs. 16.536 million

(2023: Rs. 15.620 million).

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

This includes balance amounting to Rs. 9.102 million (2023: Rs. 3.328 million) due to an

associated company.

27 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation 49,261,102

        

86,452,524

         27.1 The net balance for deferred taxation is in respect  of following temporary differences:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 239,543,122

      

160,805,430

       

Deferred tax assets

Lease rentals (47,894,964)

      

(42,501,348)

        

Allowance for expected credit loss (48,160,054)

      

(28,590,711)

        

Dividend income (431,499)

           

-

                         

Unused tax losses (90,423,024)

      

-

                         

Provision for slow moving items (3,372,479) (3,260,847)

(190,282,020) (74,352,906)

49,261,102 86,452,524



31.3

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

32 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG

TERM LIABILITIES

Long term financing 23         74,094,110           39,298,664 

Lease liabilities 24         29,486,271           11,092,700 

Deferred government grant 25         18,888,644           15,484,898 

      122,469,025           65,876,262 

The Company has obtained short term finance facilities from Standard Chartered Bank. The

aggregate facilities under mark-up arrangements amounted to Rs. 19.295 million (2023: Rs.

84.096 million). The rate of mark up on these finance facilities ranges between 3 month to 6

months KIBOR plus 1.75% to 2% per annum (2023: 3 month and 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75%

to 2% per annum) and is payable quarterly.
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28.4

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
29 UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Unclaimed dividend 29.1
       

3,038,460
          

3,038,460
           

29.1 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Opening balance 3,038,460          3,040,376           
Dividend Declared - net

Less: dividend paid -                     (1,916)                 

3,038,460          3,038,460           
30 INTEREST AND MARK-UP ACCRUED

Interest and markup accrued on:

Long-term financing from banks

With conventional bank 19,444,167

        

15,959,687

         Short-term borrowings from Banks

Islamic bank 8,128,954

          

6,776,591

           
Conventional bank 43,636,693

        

27,553,479

         
51,765,647

        

34,330,070

         

71,209,814

        

50,289,757

         

31 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

Islamic

National Bank of Pakistan 31.1 75,000,000

        

45,143,220

         

Conventional

Muslim Commercial Bank 31.2 391,941,591

      

498,866,331

       

Standard Chartered Bank 31.3 19,295,409

        

84,096,690

         

486,237,000

      

628,106,241

       

31.1

31.2

The Company has obtained short term finance from National bank of Pakistan. The aggregate

facilities under mark-up arrangements amounted to Rs. 75 million (2023: Rs. 45.14 million). The

rate of mark up on this finance facilitiy is 1 month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2023: 1

month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum) and is payable quarterly.

The Company has obtained short term finance facility from Muslim Commercial Bank. The

aggregate facilities under mark-up arrangements amounted to Rs. 391.941 million (2023: Rs.

498.866 million). The rate of mark up on this finance facilitiy is 1 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per

annum (2023: 1 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per annum) and is payable quarterly.

This includes due to Chief Executive Officer, Directors and other related party amounting to Rs.

36.002 million (2023: 18.877 million), Rs.13.320 million (2023: Rs.1.210 million) and Rs.

37.675 million (2023: 3.610 million) respectively. These balances do not carry any interest and

are repayable on demand. 
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33 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

33.1 Contingencies

33.2 Commitments

a)

b)

The Company was committed as at the reporting date as follows:

Guarantees have been issued by banking companies in normal course of business amounting to

Rs. 100 million (2023: Rs. 106.86 million).

Letters of credit against import of raw cotton and spare parts amounting to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs.

190.473 million) and Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 19.066 million) respectively.

Crescent Cotton Mills Limited formerly (Crescent Sugar Mills and Distillery Limited) has filed a

case against the Company for an amount of Rs. 53.850 million (2023: 58.850 million) on the

basis of case documents filed. The Company has a recorded liability of Rs. 17.542 million (2023:

17.42 million) as the best estimate of amounts owed. No provision for the difference amount has

been made as management is of the view that the basis is frivolous and in view of counter claims

available with the Company, management is confident that the balance amount shall not be

payable.

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

34 SALES - NET

Local yarn 7,498,959,269

   

8,098,037,688

    Local waste 40,808,425

        
50,451,456

         (955,788,160)

    

(1,206,243,380)

   (84,140,130)

      

(94,674,363)

        
6,499,839,404

   

6,847,571,401

    
35 COST OF SALES

Material consumed 35.1 4,650,424,531

   

5,112,799,737

    

Salaries, wages and other benefits 35.2 509,310,260

      

491,447,085

       

Power and fuel 1,181,144,771

   

747,821,898

       

Depreciation 6.1.1 128,733,803

      

86,732,451

         

Packing material consumed 82,124,516

        

80,049,406

         

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 110,926,476

      

136,063,153

       

Insurance 24,669,422

        

20,975,597

         

Repairs and maintenance 8,113,480

          

17,114,419

         

384,939

             

414,438

              

Other manufacturing overheads 32,826,257

        

30,540,063

         

Manufacturing cost 6,728,658,455

   

6,723,958,247

    

Opening work-in-process 129,395,154

      

120,809,946

       

Closing work-in-process (85,381,195)

      

(129,395,154)

      

44,013,959 (8,585,208)

Cost of goods manufactured 6,772,672,414 6,715,373,039

Opening stock of finished goods 100,284,792 203,275,105

Closing stock of finished goods (123,797,093) (100,284,792)

(23,512,301) 102,990,313
6,749,160,113 6,818,363,352

35.1 Material consumed

Opening stock 458,254,047 418,646,065

Purchases 4,681,241,271 5,152,407,719

5,139,495,318 5,571,053,784

Closing stock (489,070,787) (458,254,047)

4,650,424,531 5,112,799,737

35.2

Provision for slow moving stores, spares and 

loose tools

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 14.938 million (2023: Rs. 15.600 million) in

respect of staff retirement benefits.

Less: Brokerage and commission

Less: Sales tax



2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

36 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE  EXPENSES

Staff salaries and other benefits 36.1 72,095,273

        
66,961,465

         

Directors' remuneration 24,870,008

        

24,730,008

         

Repairs and maintenance 5,939,866

          

7,618,129

           

Vehicles running and maintenance 15,731,345

        

15,899,730

         

Insurance 5,399,975

          

3,528,716

           

Telephone and postage 1,769,720

          

1,407,120

           

Traveling and conveyance 4,091,255

          
6,246,845

           

Fee and subscription 9,438,672
          

7,842,334
           

Legal and professional charges 1,576,500
          

611,950
              

Depreciation 6.1.1 12,903,133
        

13,745,328
         

Amortization 7.1 2,181,448          2,014,742           
Utilities 7,134,846          5,649,197           
Rent, rates and taxes 24.3 8,717,930          6,093,865           
Entertainment 6,342,905

          
4,164,447

           
Printing and stationery 1,366,273

          
1,294,519

           Others 4,290,668

          
4,022,029

           183,849,817

      

171,830,424

       36.1

37 DISTRIBUTION COST

Staff salaries and other benefits 11,088,652

        

9,732,468

           

Local freight and insurance 15,271,460

        

18,564,403

         

Other 1,045,908

          

2,543,980

           

27,406,020

        

30,840,851

         

38 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Rental income 36,081,914

        

32,801,844

         

Fair value gain on investment property 8 -

                     

782,319,480

       

Interest on bank savings 20,071,024

        

15,155,998

         

Grant income 19,007,240

        

3,829,350

           

Dividend income 38.1 1,487,926

          

1,488,742

           

Scrap sales - store items 49,453

               

6,688,000

          

Gain on sale of fixed assets 7,868,445 5,584,591
84,566,002 847,868,005

Staff salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.312 million (2023: Rs. 4.696 million) in respect of

staff retirement benefits.

38.1 Dividend income received on the shares of The Crescent Textiles Mills Ltd.

39 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration:

Statutory audit 1,008,844 917,130

Out of pocket 100,884
             

91,713
                

Sales Tax 88,778
               

80,707
                Half yearly review 210,000

             
210,000

              1,408,506

          

1,299,550

           Workers' Profit Participation Fund -

                     

-

                     
Workers' Welfare Fund -

                     

7,004,133

           
1,408,506

          

8,303,683
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42.1

42.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Loss before taxation (717,495,614)

    

343,202,516

       

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%) (208,073,728)

    

99,528,730

         

Tax effect of permanent differences -

                     

-

                     

Impact of adjustment of minimum tax 287,360,435

      

(12,750,658)

        

Effect of prior tax (1,156,096)

        

(82,565,033)

        

Impact of deferred tax adjustment (116,478,129)

    
(36,915,770)

        

Others -
                     

-
                     

(38,347,518)
      

(32,702,731)
        

42.3

2024 2023

% %

Applicable tax rate 29                      29                      
Effect of minimum tax adjustment (4)

                      
(4)

                       
Average effective tax rate 25

                      
25

                      

Numerical reconciliation between the applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate is as

follows:

The provision of current tax charge for the year contains normal tax at the applicable tax rates.

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

   

                    

40 FINANCIAL CHARGES

Mark-up / interest on:

Long-term financing

Islamic bank -
                     

-
                     

Conventional bank 73,113,707        55,429,318         

73,113,707        55,429,318         

Short-term borrowing

Islamic bank 28,693,468        62,024,693         
Conventional bank 102,121,557      97,282,454         

130,815,025      159,307,147       
Financial charges on leases 24.3 33,724,894

        
9,149,978

           Workers' Profit Participation Fund -
                     

4,241,258
           237,653,626

      
228,127,701

       Finance charges on GIDC 9,380,716

          
5,942,227

           Bank charges 25,561,731

        

53,654,899

         272,596,073

      

287,724,827

       41 MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37 79,286,707

        

-

                     

42 TAXATION

Current 42.1 - 86,778,072

Prior 42.4 (1,156,096) (82,565,033)

42.3 (1,156,096) 4,213,039

Deferred (37,191,422) (36,915,770)

This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO,

2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

(38,347,518) (32,702,731)

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

2
4

55



A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

2
4

56

176,911,900 169,502,792 

126,454,677 129,680,768 

44.1

45 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation (717,495,614)

    

343,202,516

       

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 38 (7,868,445)

        

(5,584,591)

          

Financial charges 40 272,596,073

      

287,724,827

       

Depreciation 6 141,636,936

      

100,477,779

       

Amortization 7.1 2,181,448

          

2,014,742

           

Gain on revaluation of investment property 38 -

                         

(782,319,480)

      

Grant income 38 (19,007,240)

      

(3,829,350)

          

Allowance for expected credit loss 67,480,491

        

35,173,753

         

Provision for slow moving items 384,939

             

414,438

              

457,404,202

      

(365,927,882)

      

Loss before working capital changes (260,091,412)

    

(22,725,366)

        

Working capital changes 45.1 610,074,573

      

585,794,880

       

349,983,161 563,069,514

Cost/ fair value of investments made

According to the Trustees, investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with

the provisions as per section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules made there under.

Size of fund - total assets

             

45.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools 9,076,913

          

(4,681,169)

          

Stock in trade (10,315,082)

      

54,797,123

         

Trade debts 710,483,926 204,765,712

Loans and advances 3,053,466 71,634,346

Deposits and short term prepayments (64,401) (641,850)

Other receivables 1,404,613 116,975

Tax refund due from the Government (71,795,071) (81,255,491)

641,844,364 244,735,646
Increase / (Decrease)  in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (31,769,791) 341,059,234
610,074,573 585,796,903

42.4

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
43

(Loss)/ profit for the year (758,434,803)

    

375,905,247

       

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding 12,417,876 12,417,876

(Loss)/ earnings per share - basic and diluted  (61.08) 30.27

BASIC AND DILUTED

EARNINGS PER SHARE - 

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the assessment u/s 122(5A) of

the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the Tax Year 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2021 and

allowed income tax refundable of Rs. 109.743 million after adjusting tax demand of Rs. 20.284

million for the Tax Year 2019 and 2020.

44 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees

under the title of "Crescent Fibres Limited - Employees Provident Fund". The Fund is maintained

by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments, distribution of income and related

decisions are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.
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46 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Other Short term Long term Lease Unclaimed Total

borrowings borrowings liability dividend

including including deferred

markup thereon income and

markup thereon

Balance as at July 01, 2023 628,106,241

           

463,030,222

            

146,556,372

       

3,038,460

        

1,240,731,295

        

Changes from financing cash flows:

Repayments of long term borrowings -

                         

(35,205,111)

             

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Proceeds from long term borrowings -

                         

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Lease rentals paid -

                         

-

                          

(24,501,324)

        

-

                   

-

                         

Dividend paid -

                         

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Changes in short term borrowings -

                         

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

  relating to financing activities (193,634,888)

         

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Total changes from financing activities (193,634,888)

         

(35,205,111)

             

(24,501,324)

        

-

                   

-

                         

Other changes:

Addition to lease -

                         

-

                          

43,100,000

         

-

                   

-

                         

Amortisation of government grant -

                         

(19,007,240)

             

--

                   

-

                         

Finance cost 130,815,025

           

73,113,707

              

33,724,894

         

-

                   

-

                         

Finance cost paid (79,049,378)

           

(54,106,467)

             

(33,724,894)

        

-

                   

-

                         

Total loan related other changes 51,765,647

             

-

                          

43,100,000

         

-

                   

-

                         

Total equity related other changes -

                         

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Balance as at June 30, 2024 486,237,000

           

427,825,111

            

165,155,048

       

3,038,460

        

1,082,255,619

        

2024

------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------

Other Short term Long term Lease Unclaimed Total

borrowings borrowings liability dividend

including including deferred

markup thereon income and

markup thereon

Balance as at July 01, 2022 595,571,495

           

194,145,365

            

43,492,401

         

3,040,376

        

836,249,637

           

Changes from financing cash flows:

Repayments of long term borrowings -

                         

(82,679,723)

             

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Proceeds from long term borrowings -

                         

355,393,930

            

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Lease rentals paid -

                         

-

                          

(21,936,031)

        

-

                   

-

                         

Dividend paid -

                         

-

                          

-

                     

(1,916)

              

-

                         

Changes in short term borrowings -

                         

  relating to financing activities (1,795,324)

             

-

                          

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Total changes from financing activities (1,795,324)

             

272,714,207

            

(21,936,031)

        

(1,916)

              

-

                         

Other changes:

Addition to lease -

                         

-

                          

125,000,000

       

-

                   

-

                         

Amortisation of government grant -

                         

(3,829,350)

               

-

                     

-

                   

-

                         

Finance cost 159,307,147

           

55,429,318

              

9,149,978

           

-

                   

-

                         

Finance cost paid (124,977,077)

         

(55,429,318)

             

(9,149,976)

          

-

                   

-

                         

Total loan related other changes 34,330,070

             

(3,829,350)

               

125,000,002

       

-

                   

-

                         

Total equity related other changes -

                         

Balance as at June 30, 2023 628,106,241

           

463,030,222

            

146,556,372

       

3,038,460

        

1,240,731,295

        

2023

------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------
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47

47.1

47.2

47.3

48 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND

EXECUTIVES

Related parties of the company comprise the associated company, companies with common

directorship, retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. All the transactions

with related parties are entered into at agreed terms in the normal course of business as approved

by the Board of directors of the company. Detail of transactions with related parties during the

year, other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:

The current and corresponding year figures include remunerations of Company’s Executives

whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of Directors fee is Rs. 0.800

million (2023: Rs. 0.660 million).

The Chief Executive Officer, a Director and some executives are also provided with Company's

maintained cars.

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all

benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:

Managerial remuneration 8,300,004

            

8,300,004

            

22,116,312

          

8,300,004

            

8,300,004

            

19,420,524

House rent 3,735,000

            

3,735,000

            

9,433,896

            

3,735,000

            

3,735,000

            

8,222,068

Fund Trust
Company's contribution to Provident

830,000

              

830,000

              

2,211,643

            

830,000

              

830,000

              

1,942,063

Reimbursable expenses 585,408 1,470,472

            

1,115,200

            

536,827

              

1,195,559

            

950,250
Total 13,450,412 14,335,476

          

34,877,051

          

13,401,831

          

14,060,563

          

30,534,905

Number of persons 1

 

1

                         

8

                         

1

                         

1

                        

8

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Executive 

Directors

Chief Executive 

Officer

Chief Executive 

Officer
Executives

Executive 

Directors
Executives

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Associated companies / 

undertaking

Suraj Cotton Mills Limited Sale of yarn / Cotton 192,738,014

       

185,632,232

Premier Insurance Limited Insurance premium 27,987,332

         

32,889,030

Amil Exports (Pvt.) Limited Rent received 942,348

              

856,680

Retirement benefit plans

Employees' Provident Fund Contribution 20,690,903 20,533,574

Key management personnels

Rent paid 4,380,800 4,380,800

Remunration and 62,662,940 57,997,300

other benefits 
(Note 47)

22.63

Nature of related party and 

relationship with the company 
Nature of 

transaction

Nil

Nil

Percentage of 

shareholding in 

the company

Nil

Nil

24.58
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48.1 Year end balances

Associated companies 3,232,249
          

27,891,583
         

9,102,399

          
3,445,729

           

Retirement benefit plans 8,876,236
          

4,145,816
           

Directors and close relative

Trade debts

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables 86,997,889
        

23,696,548
         

48.2

a) Associated companies / undertakings

Amil Exports (Private) Limited  (Common Directorship)

The Crescent Textiles Mills Ltd.  (Common Directorship)

Mohd Amin Mohd Bashir Inter (Private) Limited  (Common Directorship)

Premier Financial Services (Private) Limited  (Common Directorship)

Premier Insurance Limited (Common Directorship)

Suraj Cotton Mills Limited (Common Directorship)

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited (Common Directorship)

b) Board of Directors

Mr. Nadeem Maqbool (Chairman)

Mr. Imran Maqbool (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Humayun Maqbool (Executive Director)

Mr. Sheikh Muhammad Ali Asif (Non-Executive Director)

Mrs. Naila Humayun Maqbool (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Mansoor Riaz (Non-Executive Director)

 

Mr. Syed Rizwan Husain (Non-Executive Director)

c) Key Executives

Mr. Sajid Muneer (General Manager Sales and Marketing)

Mr. Kamran Rasheed (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Mohammad Nasarullah (Executive Director)

Mr. Raheel Safdar Bhatti (Technical Director)

48.3

Names of related parties, nature and basis of relationship

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

Relationship with Company Nature of transaction

Rupees Rupees
2024 2023
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49

49.1

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

50.1 Risk management policies

- Credit risk

50.2 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from trade debts, trade deposits, loans, other

receivables and investment, term deposit certificates and bank balances. The carrying amount of

financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk

at the reporting date is as follows:

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working

capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to

minimize risk.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if

counter parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other

receivables. The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter

parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

The Company's objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holder' value.

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process

of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability. The Company is

exposed to following risks arising from the financial instruments it holds.

The difference between installed and actual production capacity is due to general deteriorating

economic condition of country. Further shortage of raw material lead to under utilization of

capacity.

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

Unit - I Unit - II Total Unit - I Unit - II Total

Number of spindles installed 28,608             38,448             67,056            28,608            38,448            67,056            

Installed capacity after conversion 

into 20/s count - kgs 11,083,232

      

14,895,417

      

25,978,649

     

11,083,232

     

14,895,417

     

25,978,649

     

Actual production of yarn after 

conversion into 20/s count - kgs 4,832,691

        

9,176,966

        

14,009,657

     

7,430,917

       

7,476,821

       

14,907,738

     

Spinning units
2024 2023

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION



Concentration of credit risk

Impaired assets

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar

business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet

contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other

conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

The Company measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default,

exposure at default and loss given default. Management considers both historical analysis and

forward-looking information in determining any expected credit loss. At the end of the reporting

period, financial assets are held with counterparties with a good credit rating or are due to be

settled in short term or on demand.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with variety of major banks and monitoring

exposure limits on continuous basis. Rating of banks ranges from  A- to AAA. 

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Deposits 17,068,676

        
14,136,885

         

Short term investments
                     

69,426,88526,499,431
         

Trade debts 1,333,254,432
   

2,043,738,358
    

Loans 1,616,620
          

1,661,623
           

Other receivables 1,848,727
          

3,253,340
           

Bank balances 61,359,902
        

202,771,079
       

1,441,647,788
   

2,334,988,170
    

Gross
Expected 

Credit loss

Credit 

impaired
Gross

Expected 

Credit loss

Credit 

impaired

Current (not past due) 225,871,074      -                 No 1,061,556,950        No

1-30 days past due 232,948,655      370,133          No 453,437,830           6,383            No

31-90 days past due 361,199,760
      

3,297,008
       

No 180,996,818
           

10,938
          

No

90-180 days past due 247,482,784
      

7,981,835
       

No 131,884,833
           

26,165
          

No

181-360 days past due 138,420,296
      

28,167,324
     

No 116,812,140
           

346,230
        

No

360 above days past due 127,331,864      126,252,850   Yes 99,049,788             98,225,747   Yes

1,333,254,433

   

166,069,150

   

2,043,738,359

        

98,615,463

   

2024 2023

---------------------------------------- Rupees ------------------------------------------

During the year, the Company has charged an allowance for expected credit loss on trade debts

amounting to Rs. 65.749 million  (2023: Rs. 35.173 million).
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50.3 Liquidity risk

50.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates

and equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holding of financial

instruments.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a

change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to

transactions entered into in foreign currencies. As of June 30, 2024, the Company is not exposed to

any currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises

from long term loans and short term borrowings. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of

the Company's interest -bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial

obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both

normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

Contractual Cash Six to Twelve 
Carrying amount

Flows 
Six months or less

months  
One to two years Two to five years Over five years

Long term financing 560,303,099           560,303,099             53,905,136             64,004,866           106,787,700           269,593,623             66,011,772 

Lease liabilities 194,635,854           194,635,854             21,584,922             20,847,477             39,547,355           112,656,100                           -   

       1,516,217,181                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

            71,209,814           132,473,320             22,619,136             21,192,089             33,328,811             51,821,512               3,511,772 

          486,237,000           486,237,000           486,237,000                           -                             -                             -                             -   

       2,828,602,948        1,373,649,273           584,346,194           106,044,432           179,663,866           434,071,235             69,523,544 

Carrying amount
Contractual Cash 

Flows 
Six months or less

Six to Twelve 

months  
One to two years Two to five years Over five years

Long term financing 595,429,215           595,429,215             28,227,553             23,784,416           105,143,872           324,510,917           113,762,456 

Lease liabilities 237,133,149           237,133,149             22,963,209             18,047,570             42,843,470           123,289,550             29,989,350 

       1,547,760,778        1,547,760,778        1,547,760,778                           -                             -                             -                             -   

            50,289,757             21,049,553             21,049,553                           -                             -                             -                             -   

          628,106,241           628,106,241           628,106,241                           -                             -                             -                             -   

       3,058,719,140        3,029,478,936        2,248,107,334             41,831,986           147,987,342           447,800,467           143,751,806 

Rupees

2024

Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings

Rupees

2023

Interest and markup accrued

Interest and markup accrued

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables
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Effective Not exposed

yield / Maturity Maturity Maturity to yield /

mark-up upto over one year over mark-up

rate one year to five years five years rate risk

Financial assets

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments 69,736,881 - - - - 69,736,881

Amortized cost

Investments 16.87% - 18.85% 26,499,431

          

26,499,431

        

-

                     

-

                     

26,499,431

          

-

Trade debts - 1,167,185,282

     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

1,167,185,282

Trade deposits - 17,068,676

          

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

17,068,676

Loans - 1,616,620 - - - - 1,616,620

Other receivables - 1,848,727 - - - - 1,848,727

Cash and bank balances 20.50% 61,565,193

          

48,762,784

        

-

                     

-

                     

48,762,784

          

12,802,409

1,345,520,810

     

75,262,215

        

-

                     

-

                     

75,262,215

          

1,270,258,595Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Long-term financing 4.50% - 22.82% 560,303,099

        

117,910,003 376,381,324

      

66,011,772

        

560,303,099

        

-

Lease liabilities 21.61% - 28.27% 194,635,854

        

42,432,399 152,203,455

      

-

                     

194,635,854

        

-

Trade and other payables 1,516,217,181

     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

1,516,217,181

Interest and markup accrued 71,209,814

          

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

71,209,814

Short-term borrowings 20.77% - 24.94% 486,237,000

        

486,237,000 -

                     

-

                     

486,237,000

        

-

(2,828,602,948)

    

(646,579,402)

     

(528,584,779)

     

(66,011,772)

       

(1,241,175,953)

    

(1,587,426,995)

On balance sheet gap (1,483,082,138)

    

(571,317,187)

     

(528,584,779)

     

(66,011,772)

       

(1,165,913,738)

    

(317,168,400)

Off balance sheet items

Guarantees on behalf of the Company 100,000,000

        

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

100,000,000

Letter of credit -

                       

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

-

100,000,000

        

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                      

100,000,000

Total gap (1,583,082,138)

    

(571,317,187)

     

(528,584,779)

     

(66,011,772)

       

(1,165,913,738)

    

(417,168,400)

2024
Exposed to yield / mark-up rate risk

Total Sub- total

%

                                                                                                 
                                                                                                 

Rupees
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

Profit or loss 

100 bp 100 bp

increase decrease
As at June 30, 2024

8,159,562 (8,159,562)

9,622,836 (9,622,836)

c) Yield / mark up rate risk

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year

and assets / liabilities of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

As at June 30, 2023

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /

(decreased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other

variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for prior year.

Yield / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to

changes in the market yield / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to yield / mark-up rate risk arises from

mismatches of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period. The

Company manages these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant

changes in gap position can be adjusted. The Company is exposed to yield / mark-up rate risk in

respect of the following:

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

2024 2023

Financial liabilities

Fixed rate instrument

Long term financing 144,978,923 138,119,905

Variable rate instruments

164,564,112 187,621,000

486,237,000 628,106,241

165,155,048 146,556,37221.61% - 28.27%

20.77% - 24.94%

4.50% - 18.32%

14.42% - 21.70%

4.50% - 22.82%Long term financing

Short term borrowings

Lease liabilities

2024

3.25% - 4.5%

Effective rate

(In percent)

21.61% - 28.27%

2023

Rupees(In percent)

Effective rate

2% - 4.5%

Carrying amount



Effective Not exposed

yield / Maturity Maturity Maturity to yield /

mark-up upto over one year over mark-up

rate one year to five years five years rate risk

%

Financial assets

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments 68,226,885 - - - - 68,226,885

Amortized cost

Investments 5.00% - 12.25% 1,200,000 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 -

Trade debts - 1,945,149,699 - - - - 1,945,149,699

Trade deposits - 14,136,885 - - - - 14,136,885

Loans - 1,661,623 - - - - 1,661,623

Other receivables - 3,253,340 - - - - 3,253,340

Cash and bank balances 12.25% - 14.50% 203,967,480 112,913,759 - - 112,913,759 91,053,721

2,237,595,912 114,113,759 - - 114,113,759 2,123,482,153

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Long-term financing 3.25% - 12.40% 595,429,215

        

52,011,969

        

429,654,790

      

113,762,456

      

595,429,215 -

Lease liabilities 14.43% - 25.68% 237,133,149

        

41,010,779

        

166,133,020

      

29,989,350

        

237,133,149 -

Trade and other payables 1,547,760,778

     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

- 1,547,760,778

Interest and markup accrued 50,289,757

          

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

- 50,289,757

Short-term borrowings 14.42% - 21.70% 628,106,241

        

628,106,241

      

-

                     

-

                     

628,106,241 -

3,058,719,140

     

(721,128,989)

     

(595,787,810)

     

(143,751,806)

     

(1,460,668,605) (1,598,050,535)

On balance sheet gap (821,123,228)

       

(607,015,230)

     

(595,787,810)

     

(143,751,806)

     

(1,346,554,846) 525,431,618

Off balance sheet items

Guarantee issued on behalf of Company 106,965,168

        

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

- 106,965,168

Letter of credit for capital expenditure 209,539,000

        

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

- 600,330,000

316,504,168 - - - - 707,295,168

Total gap (1,137,627,396) (607,015,230) (595,787,810) (143,751,806) (1,346,554,846) (181,863,550)

2023
Exposed to yield / mark-up rate risk

Rupees

Total Sub- total
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d)

2024 2023

 

Rupees Rupees

        69,736,881         68,226,885 

The Company has exposure to market price risk in investments classified as fair value through

other comprehensive.

As at June 30, 2024, the fair value of equity securities

exposed to price risk were as follows:

Market price risk

The Company’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of financial

instruments within specified limits.

The risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market prices of securities due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the

instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities

and liquidity in the market.

The following analysis illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and the share holders'

equity to an increase or decrease of 5% in the fair values of the Company’s equity securities. This

level of change is considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market

conditions. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Company's equity securities at each statement

of assets and liabilities date, with all other variables held constant.

Exposure

Risk management

At fair value through other comprehensive income
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Change in rate
Effect on profit/ 

loss before tax

±           3,486,844 

±           3,411,344 

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

50.5 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets 

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments         96,236,312         68,226,885 

Amortized cost

Investments         26,499,431           1,200,000 

Trade debts    1,167,185,282    1,945,149,699 

Loans           1,616,620           1,661,623 

2024

2023

Trade deposits         17,068,676         14,136,885 

Other receivables           1,848,727           3,253,340 

Bank balances         61,565,193       203,967,480 

   1,372,020,241    2,237,595,912 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Long-term financing 560,303,099

      
      595,429,215 

Lease liabilities 194,635,854

      

      237,133,149 

Trade and other payables 1,516,217,181

   

1,547,760,778

   Interest and markup accrued 71,209,814

        

50,289,757

        
Short-term borrowings 486,237,000

      

628,106,241

      
   2,828,602,948    3,058,719,140 

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

Level 3:

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of

financial instruments by valuation technique:

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern

without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake

a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing

on the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is

considered not significantly different from book value as the items are short term in nature.

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair

value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value

that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences

can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.
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Assets at Fair value Other Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

amortised financial

cost liabilities

Financial assets not

measured at fair value

Loan and advances 22,833,082

          

Long and short term deposits 44,486,676

          

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Trade debts 1,167,185,282

     

-

              

- - - -

Other receivables 1,848,727

            

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Investment in associate -

                       

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Cash and bank balances 62,513,872

          

-
-

               

-
-

                     

-

               

-
-

               

-
-Short term investment 26,499,431

          

26,499,431

  

Financial assets measured 

at fair value

Long term investment 69,736,881

  

- -

                     

69,736,881

  

-

Financial liabilities not

measured at fair value

Long term borrowings

including deferred income -

                       
-

               
427,825,112

      
-

               
-

               
-

Trade and other payables -
                       

-
               

1,647,856,424
   

-
               

-
               

-

Short-term borrowings -
                       

-
               

486,237,000
      

-
               

-
               

-

Lease Liabilities -
                       

-
               

165,155,048
      

-
               

-
               

-

Assets at Fair value Other Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

amortised financial

cost liabilities

Financial assets not

measured at fair value

Loan and advances 25,886,548

          

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Long and short term deposits 9,882,962

            

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Trade debts 1,945,149,699

     

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Other receivables 3,253,340

            

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Investment in associate -

                       

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Cash and bank balances 204,350,417

        

-

               

-

                     

-

               

-

               

-

Short term investment 1,200,000

            

-

               

-

                     

1,200,000

    

-

               

-

Financial assets measured 

at fair value

Long term investment -

                       

68,226,885

  

-

                     

68,226,885

  

-

               

-

Financial liabilities not

measured at fair value

Long term borrowings

including deferred income 463,030,222

      

Trade and other payables -

                       

-

               

1,597,496,291

   

-

               

-

               

-

Short-term borrowings 628,106,241

Lease Liabilities - - 146,556,372 - - -

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees  -------------------------------------------------

2024

Carrying amount Fair value

------------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------------

2023

Carrying amount Fair value
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Valuation techniques

52 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Total Borrowings (notes 24, 25, 31 & 32)       960,935,083    1,100,403,518 

Less: Cash and bank balances (note 20)        (62,513,872)      (204,350,417)

Net debt       898,421,211       896,053,101 

Total equity    1,957,131,410    2,714,056,217 

Total capital    2,855,552,621    3,610,109,318 

Gearing ratio 31% 25%

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working

capital with a view to maintaining an approximate mix between various sources of finance to

minimize risk. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements

approximate their fair values. However, there were no transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy during the year.

The Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to

continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stake

holders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The  debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

Consistently with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-

adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is

calculated as total debt (as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and bank

balances. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. issued, subscribed and paid up

capital, general reserve and unappropriated profit).

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to the risk and manages the capital structure

and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets

to reduce debt.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period

during which the changes have occurred.

For level 1 investments at fair value through profit or loss' - 'Investment in respect of equity

securities, the company uses daily quotation rates which are taken from Pakistan Stock Exchange

Limited at the reporting date.
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees53

Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic banks:

        94,295,409         47,770,723 

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

             948,679              382,937 

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

        21,916,877         55,248,102 

                       -                          -   

                       -                          -   

      201,371,183       194,499,364 

2024 2023

54 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at June 30, 900 1022

Average number of employees 845 1010

55 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

No. of employees

DISCLOSURE BY COMPANIES 

LISTED IN ISLAMIC INDEX

Loans

Advances

Shariah complaint bank deposits / bank balances

Profit earned from shariah complaint 

Interest paid on loans

Relationship with shariah compliant banks

The Company has earned dividend income from the investment made in the shares of shariah

complaint companies.

(Loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments

at fair value through profit or loss

Exchange gain earned

Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing

Profits interest paid on any 

conventional loan or advance

bank deposits / bank balances

Revenue earned from a shariah complaint 

investments Dividend income

Gain on sale of investments

Gain / (loss) or dividend earned from shariah complaint

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose

of comparison and better presentation. Following significant reclassification has been made during

the year.
2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

        68,226,885         68,226,885 

56 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless other wise stated.

57 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 30, 2024 by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

Particulars From short term

investment 

To long term

investment.

At fair value through other comprehensive 

Equity investment

IMRAN MAQBOOL
Chief Executive Officer

NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL
Director

KAMRAN RASHEED
Chief Financial Officer



1.1 Name of the Company

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at June 30, 2024

2.2     No. of Total shares

Shareholders        From To Held

681 1

                     

100

            

21,414 0.17
435 101

                 

500

            

99,146 0.80
87 501

                 

1,000

         

60,180 0.48
119 1,001

              

5,000

         

231,045 1.86
30 5,001

              

10,000

       

212,372 1.71
8 10,001

            

15,000

       

105,573 0.85
7 15,001

            

20,000

       

115,193 0.93
7 20,001

            

25,000

       

154,784 1.25
10 25,001

            

30,000

       

280,986 2.26
2 30,001

            

35,000

       

64,365 0.52
4 35,001

            

40,000

       

147,874 1.19
3 40,001

            

45,000

       

126,573 1.02
2 55,001

            

60,000

       

118,233 0.95
1 65,001

            

70,000

       

69,183 0.56
2 70,001

            

75,000

       

145,320 1.17
2 75,001

            

80,000

       

153,897 1.24
1 100,001

          

105,000

     

100,515 0.81
1 135,001

          

140,000

     

137,641 1.11
1 145,001

          

150,000

     

150,000 1.21
2 155,001

          

160,000

     

315,948 2.54
1 235,001

          

240,000

     

237,466 1.91
1 240,001

          

245,000

     

241,623 1.95
1 340,001

          

345,000

     

341,586 2.75
1 350,001

          

355,000

     

351,657 2.83
1 630,001

          

635,000

     

633,015 5.10
2 795,001

          

800,000

     

1,600,000 12.88
1 850,001

          

855,000

     

852,681 6.87
1 1,230,001

       

1,235,000

  

1,232,355 9.92
1 1,305,001

       

1,310,000

  

1,306,831 10.52
1 1,395,001

       

1,400,000

  

1,396,045 11.24
1 1,410,001

       

1,415,000

  

1,414,375 11.39

1,417

              

12,417,876

      

100.00

2.3     Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, CEO, their Spouse and Minor Children 5,852,592 47.13

2.3.2  Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 381,657 3.07

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 858,438 6.91

2.3.4  Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking 130,308 1.05
           Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies 1,102 0.01

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual Funds 94,121 0.76

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% or above 5,691,192 45.83

2.3.8  General Public
           a. Local 4,762,330 38.35
           b. Foreign 652 0.01

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
          Joint Stock Companies 227,915 1.84
          Pension Funds 77,956 0.63
          Others 30,805 0.25

Percentage

CRESCENT FIBRES LIMITED

FORM 20

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

[Section 227(2)(f) and Regulation 30]

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

COMPANIES REGULATIONS, 2024

Shareholdings
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
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Sr. No. Name
No. of Shares 

Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED (CDC) 30,000          0.24

2 THE CRESCENT TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (CDC) 351,657        2.83

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

1 CDC -TRUSTEE AKD OPPROTUNITY FUND (CDC) 35,500          0.29

2 CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND (CDC) 42,000          0.34

Directors, CEO , their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MRS. NAILA HUMAYUN MAQBOOL 500               0.00

2 MR. NADEEM MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,306,831     10.52

3 MR. IMRAN MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,414,375     11.39

4 MR. HUMAYUN MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,396,045     11.24

5 MR. MANSOOR RIAZ (CDC) 1,573,941     12.67

6 MR. SHEIKH MUHAMMAD ALI ASIF (CDC) 500               0.00

7 MR. SYED RIZWAN HUSAIN (CDC) 500               0.00

8 MRS. NAZIA MAQBOOL W/O MR. NADEEM MAQBOOL (CDC) 3,399            0.03

9 MRS. ASMA IMRAN MAQBOOL W/O MR. IMRAN MAQBOOL (CDC) 6,501            0.05

10 MRS. SADIA MANSOOR RIAZ W/O MR. MANSOOR RIAZ (CDC) 150,000        1.21

Executives: 1,050            0.01

Public Sector, Companies & Corporations:

          Joint Stock Companies 227,915        1.84

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds: 225,987        1.82

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail):

S. No. NAME Holding %Age

1 MR. IMRAN MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,414,375     11.39

2 MR. HUMAYUN MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,396,045
     

11.24

3 MR. NADEEM MAQBOOL (CDC) 1,306,831     10.52

4 MR. MANSOOR RIAZ (CDC) 1,573,941     12.67

5 MR. SAIF MAQBOOL (CDC) 800,000
        

6.44

6 MR. TAYYAB IMRAN MAQBOOL (CDC) 800,000
        

6.44

7 MR. BASHIR AHMAD (CDC) 633,015        5.10

8 M/S. CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 852,681
        

6.87

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEO, Executives, their spouses

and minor children shall also be disclosed:

Sr. No. NAME Purchase Inherited Gift-In Gift-Out

1 MR. MANSOOR RIAZ   (DIRECTOR) 1,500
           

649,904
  

-
          

227,466
  

2 MR. NADEEM MAQBOOL   (DIRECTOR) -
              

-
          

166,099
  

-
          

3 MRS. NAZIA MAQBOOL W/O. NADEEM MAQBOOL -
              

-
          

-
          

166,099
  

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2024



 
 CDC Participant ID #        Sub Account #  /  Folio #  NIC No. Share Holding

   
 
I/We_______________________________________________________________________________

of_________________________________________________________________________________

being a member of CRESCENT FIBRES

 
LIMITED, hereby appoint____________________________or

failing him______________________________________________________________________(being 

a member of the Company) as my/our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our 

behalf at the 47th

 

Annual General  Meeting  of  the  Company  to  be  held  on  Monday the 

28th

 

October, 2024

 

at 9.30 a.m. at Registered office of the Company 104-Shadman-1, Lahore and 

at any adjournment thereof.

 

 

Witnesses:

   
 

1. Signature: 

 

___________________

 
    

Name   

  

:

  

___________________

                                          
    

C.N.I.C.     ___________________

                             
    

Address:

   

___________________

                          
 

2. Signature: ___________________
Name    :  ___________________
C.N.I.C.    ___________________
Address: ____________________

Date:

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy.

2. The instruments appointing a proxy, together with the power of attorney, if any, under which it is 
signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Registered Office, 104-
Shadman-1, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in 
circular # 1 dated January 26, 2000 of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan for 
appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, 
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen 
signatures of the proxy holder shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith 
proxy form to the company.

Please affix here
Revenue

Stamps of Rs. 50/-

_______________
Members’ Signature

  FORM OF PROXY
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